
HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 

COMMITTEE MEETING 

~ MINUTES ~ 

 Tuesday, June 7, 2022 3:00 PM Sullivan Chamber 

                                                                                                                                                   795 Massachusetts Avenue 

                                                                                                                                                         Cambridge, MA 02139 

City of Cambridge Page 1   

 The Health and Environment Committee will conduct a public hearing to discuss the issue of the 

adverse impacts of gas-powered leaf blowers and recent bans on their use in other jurisdictions. 

Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Patricia Nolan     

Burhan Azeem Remote    

Dennis J. Carlone     

Marc C. McGovern     

Quinton Zondervan Remote    

 

A public meeting of the Cambridge City Council’s Health and Environment Committee was held on June 

7, 2022 at 3:00 p.m.  The meeting was Called to Order at 3:00 p.m. by the Chair, Councillor Nolan. 

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2022 adopted by the Massachusetts General Assembly and 

approved by the Governor, the public meeting was hybrid, allowing participation in person, in the 

Sullivan Chamber, 2nd Floor, City Hall, 795 Massachusetts Avenue, Cambridge, MA and by remote 

participation via Zoom. 

Deputy City Clerk Crane called the roll. 

Councillor Nolan – Present 
Councillor Azeem – Present/Remote 
Councillor Carlone - Present 
Councillor McGovern – Present 
Councillor Zondervan – Present/Remote 
Present-5. Absent-0. Quorum established. 
 
Councillor Nolan stated that there are six people signed up for Public Comment and stated that each 
person would have a choice as to when they would give their public comment, either before or after the 
presentations.  All of the public commenters chose to give their comments after the presentations.  
 
Councillor Nolan gave some background information via a PowerPoint titled “Adverse Impacts of and 
bans on Gas-Powered Leaf Blowers.” (ATTACHMENT A). She stated that what spurred this particular 
effort is that the Climate Crisis Working Group concluded its work a few months ago and they 
mentioned that it would be good for Cambridge to be a leader in the effort as an environmental issue. 
Another factor is a Cambridge student’s inspiration.  
 
Owen O’Riordan, Commissioner, Department of Public Works, introduced City staff who were present to 
address questions and comments from City Councillors: John Nardone, Deputy Commissioner, David 
Webster, Division Head for Parks, Department of Public Works (DPW); Sam Corda, Managing Director 
Water Department, Nicole Murati Ferrer, Chair, License Commission, and Adam Corbeil, Recreation and 
Aquatics Director, Department of Human Service Programs (DHSP).   
 

6.1

Packet Pg. 317

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



Minutes Health & Environment Committee June 7, 2022 

City of Cambridge Page 2   

John Nardone and Nicole Murati Ferrer gave a summary of a PowerPoint titled: “Leaf Blowers in 
Cambridge.” (ATTACHMENT B). Mr. Nardone stated that a lot of the slides are from a presentation that 
was given in 2019 when discussing a total ban. He stated that the City Ordinance states that the City 
Council recognized that a total ban on the use of such equipment would have a severe adverse impact 
on the ability of the City to effectively remove leaves, dust, dirt, grass clippings, cuttings and trimmings 
from trees, etc. Ms. Murati Ferrer summarized enforcement efforts by the License Commission and 
stated that the best practices are encompassed in the Rules and Regulations that are provided to 
contractors and operators that get licensed and permitted through the License Commission.  
 
As it relates to modifications to City Operations, Mr. Nardone stated that for the past five years, the City 
has been exploring several pieces of electric maintenance equipment, particularly when it comes to leaf 
blowers. He said that he is pleased to report that all in-house City operations have switched over to 
battery-operated portable leaf blowers. He explained that more recently, DPW has worked with several 
different contractors who perform approximately 75% of landscape/park maintenance for the City who 
have switched over to battery-operated backpack leaf blowers. Adam Corbeil added that he is pleased 
to say that the Fresh Pond Golf Course has transitioned over to fully battery operated backpack leaf 
blowers. He said that the golf course has made a lot of effort in a replacement plan for all of the 
vehicles. He noted that mowers, tractor, and aerator equipment that have accessories that are battery 
powered have been purchased which will aid in the transition to electric equipment. Councillor Nolan 
asked for clarification that only battery powered leaf blowers are being used at the golf course, with the 
exception of large cleanups except in the massive cleanups. Mr. Corbeil answered in the affirmative.  
 
Nicole Murati Ferrer said that although some commercial leaf blower operators are using electric leaf 
blowers, the majority still operate gas leaf blowers.  
 
Councillor Nolan opened the meeting to Public Comment. 
 
Virginia Coleman, 2 Berkeley Place, stated that she spearheaded the 2019 effort to ban all leaf blowers. 
She said that she is no longer asking for a total ban, just a ban on gas leaf blowers. She said that the ban, 
as proposed, gives large property owners 4 years to do this. She said that this is doable.  
 
Dawn Burau, 10 Appleton Road, talked about the adverse effects of leaf blowers.  
 
James Kelley, Cambridge Landscape Company, 100 Smith Place, stated that he was on the Committee 
that crafted the original ordinance. He said that there is a need for gas blowers at certain times of the 
year. He said that his company has electric equipment and has spent over $100,000 this year purchasing 
electric mowers. He said that he would like for there to be a grant for a period of time in the fall and 
spring to use gas powered equipment.  
 
Laura McMurray, 334 Harvard Street, stated that two-stroke engines pollute the air. She spoke of a 
study based in California regarding gas leaf blowers. She said electric leaf blowers are not perfect but 
they are a better way to go than the gas leaf blowers.   
 
Susan Butler, 14 Clinton Street, stated that she has two building that are entirely electric with zero 
combustion. She said that she is a nurse who is concerned about health. She said that the problem with 
leaf blowers is particulates. She said that one should keep all plant material on the land where it came 
from. She said that if there was a machine the vacuumed with tight HEPA filtration keeping the 
particulates in may be healthy but everything else is dangerous and unhealthy. 

6.1

Packet Pg. 318

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



Minutes Health & Environment Committee June 7, 2022 

City of Cambridge Page 3   

 
Kerry Canavan, Deputy Director of Operations, Cambridge Housing Authority, stated that she is not in 
favor of a total ban of gas-powered leaf blowers. She said that it would be difficult for maintenance staff 
to clear the leaves out of the large developments. She said electric leaf blowers are used on a regular 
basis.    
 
Councillor Zondervan said that he was part of the first effort to ban leaf blowers over ten years ago. He 
said that he worked in landscaping as a teen and carried a two-stroke backpack leaf blower.  He is aware 
of the health impacts on the workers. He said that he cannot stand the noise. He said that the concerns 
raised by City staff are significant. He said that technology is not there yet. He asked about battery 
disposal. Mr. Nardone responded that as we get into more electric in general, there must be a 
conversation about what is happening with that waste. He noted that the City does recycle batteries as 
it always has.  
 
Councillor McGovern stated that he understands the concerns around noise and health issues. He said 
that he is open to a plan to phase out gas powered equipment. He asked a question about enforcement 
issues. He asked what one would do when someone is violating the ordinance. Who do they contact? 
Ms. Murati Ferrer stated that since the License Commission has begun a proactive campaign, they get 
more information from the public when these things are happening  but they proactively teach these 
companies what the rules and regulations are in Cambridge. She said that a lot of the companies are 
doing their own training of their own employees. She said that people are told to call the License 
Commission main line, e-mail and they can call the non-emergency police line. She said that 
investigators do not have the authority to issue a ticket even if they see the violation. A hearing is then 
conducted. She said that she is unsure where the issue of tickets has landed as it is a complicated 
process.  
 
Councillor Nolan stated that she is interested in understanding what other cities are doing. She said that 
California is in the process of phasing in a ban across the entire state. She said that the City should 
consider if is other equipment to think about such as string trimmers or hedge trimmers. She said that 
this is emission pollution that can be controlled. She said it is an environment justice issue of the health 
of the workers using these machines. She asked how we can move forward to protect the City’s air and 
the protection of the workers who use this equipment. She asked Mr. Cobiel if the vehicles at the Fresh 
Pond Golf Course are being replaced with electric. Mr. Corbeil responded that that is the goal.  He said 
that currently there are 8 pieces of equipment that are being run on battery power.  
 
Councillor Carlone said that it would be great if the DPW and the License Commission could have a 
position paper giving a summary with all of the information that may not be in meeting minutes that can 
be built upon.  
 
Councillor Azeem said that he appreciates the conversation and looks forward to being all electric. 
 
Councillor Nolan stated that the conversation should be continued. She stated that large institutional 
players and what changes can and should be made to the current ordinance.  
 
Susanne Rasmussen noted resources available for the transition to electric equipment.  
 
Mr. Kelley added that thought also needs to be given to infrastructure that is needed to plug in.  
 

6.1

Packet Pg. 319

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



Minutes Health & Environment Committee June 7, 2022 

City of Cambridge Page 4   

Councillor Carlone made a motion to adjourn at approximately 4:46 p.m.: 
 
Deputy City Clerk Crane called the roll. 

Councillor Nolan – Yes 
Councillor Azeem – Yes 
Councillor Carlone - Yes 
Councillor McGovern – Yes 
Councillor Zondervan – Yes 
Yes-5. Absent-0. Motion Passed.  
 
Attachment A: Presentation titled “Adverse impacts of and bans on Gas-powered Leaf Blowers.” 
 
Attachment B: Presentation titled “Leaf Blowers in Cambridge.” 
 
Clerk’s Note: The City of Cambridge/22 City View records every City Council meeting and every City 

Council Committee meeting.  This is a permanent record.   

The video for this meeting can be viewed at:   

https://cambridgema.granicus.com/player/clip/271?view_id=1&redirect=true&h=864f066efee7b9dcbb5e

d4866a34aa20 

All meetings are “closed captioned”.  After each meeting the “closed captioned transcripts” are available 

online at: https://app.box.com/s/9qormcahynjt4pzpt1n5opixogl3q7k5    

Please note that there is no editing of these “closed captioned transcripts” and they do not constitute a 

verbatim transcript prepared by a certified transcriber.  

 
 
 

 

6.1

Packet Pg. 320

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)

https://cambridgema.granicus.com/player/clip/271?view_id=1&redirect=true&h=864f066efee7b9dcbb5ed4866a34aa20
https://cambridgema.granicus.com/player/clip/271?view_id=1&redirect=true&h=864f066efee7b9dcbb5ed4866a34aa20
https://app.box.com/s/9qormcahynjt4pzpt1n5opixogl3q7k5


6.1

Packet Pg. 321

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 322

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 323

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 324

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 325

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 326

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 327

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 328

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 329

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 330

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 331

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 332

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 333

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 334

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 335

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 336

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 337

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 338

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 339

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)



6.1

Packet Pg. 340

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
 7

, 2
02

2 
3:

00
 P

M
  (

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s)


